
North East multi-ward forum
Wednesday 11 March 2020 at 7.00pm

Harris Academy Bermondsey, 55 Southwark Park Rd, Bermondsey, London 
SE16 3TZ

The decision making meeting will be followed by the Empowering Communities 
Programme meeting – see page 56

Membership

Counciillor Sunny Lambe (Chair)
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Stephanie Cryan
Councillor Nick Johnson
Councillor Eliza Mann
Councillor Hamish McCallum

Councillor Leo Pollak
Councillor Jane Salmon
Councillor Leanne Werner
Councillor Dan Whitehead
Councillor Kath Whittam
Councillor Bill Williams

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as 
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you 
may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building access, 
translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact: Tim Murtagh on 020 7525 7187 or email: tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 3 March 2020

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk


North East multi-ward forum

Wednesday 11 March 2020
7.00 pm

Harris Academy Bermondsey, 55 Southwark Park Rd, Bermondsey, London SE16 
3TZ

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME

2. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any personal interests and dispensations in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

5. MINUTES

None.

6. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS (IF ANY)

The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received at this 
meeting.

These must relate to a subject matter on this agenda only.



Item No. Title Page No.

7. CLEANER GREENER SAFER CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020-21 1 - 9

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward forum.

To approve a reallocation and an allocation of funds for the Cleaner 
Greener Safer capital programme.

8. NEIGHBOURHOODS FUND 2020-21 10 - 48

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward forum.

To approve the allocation of funds for the 2020-21 Neighbourhoods Fund 
in the North East multi-ward area from the list of applications outlined in 
Appendix 1.

9. DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS PROGRAMME 2020-21 49 - 55

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward forum.

To approve a reallocation and an allocation of funds for the Devolved 
Highways Programme.

Date:  2 March 2020

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

  “That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution.”



Item No. 
7.

Classification
Open

Date:
11 March 2020

Meeting Name:
North East Multi-Ward Forum

Report title: Cleaner Greener Safer Capital Programme 2020-21

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

North Bermondsey, Rotherhithe, South 
Bermondsey, Surrey Docks

From: Head of Service – Highways 

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To approve the reallocation of underspent funds carried forward from previous 
years underspend, current programme underspend and current programme 
project cancellations.

2. To approve the allocation of funds for the 2020-201 Cleaner Greener Safer 
(CGS) capital programme in the North East multi-ward area from the list of 
applications set out in Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3. The council’s CGS capital programme has been running since 2003.

4. £1.88 million has been allocated every year since 2003 for capital projects 
within the borough. 

5. Funding is allocated to individual wards based on a per councilor calculation.

6. Examples of the types of projects that have been funded include:
 Parks, community gardens, landscaping, tree planting and wildlife areas
 Children’s playgrounds, youth facilities, ball courts and cycle tracks
 Lighting, security measures, pavements, streets, and tackling ‘grot spots’
 Grants to local groups to self-deliver projects

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

7. There is £ 358,095 available for the 2020-21 CGS capital programme for new 
projects in the North East Multi Ward area.

8. There is £ 135,044 in additional funding from previous years underspend, 
current programme underspend and current programme project cancellations. 

9. Eligible proposals must bring about a permanent improvement and make an 
area cleaner, greener or safer. 

10. Proposals with revenue costs, including salaries, costs for events, festivals, 
workshops or other one-off events are not eligible for capital funding. CCTV 
proposals and internal improvements to housing property and works on schools 
where there is no access to the general public are also not eligible. Works on 
private property are not eligible unless there is a long-term guarantee of public 

1
Agenda Item 7



access or a demonstrable public benefit. 

11. The application form invited expressions of interest for the applicants to deliver 
projects themselves. A due diligence exercise to ensure that this is both 
practical and realistic has been undertaken as part of the feasibility process. In 
such cases, the council would give the funding allocation to the applicant in the 
form of a capital grant, with appropriate conditions attached.

Policy implications

12. The CGS programme is fully aligned with the council’s policies around 
sustainability, regeneration and community engagement.

Community impact statement

13. The roles and functions of multi-ward areas include the promotion of 
involvement of local people in the democratic process. 

14. An explicit objective within multi-ward areas is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse 
local communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The CGS programme 
is an important tool in achieving community participation.

15. In fulfilling the above objectives of multi-ward areas to bring together and 
involve Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been 
given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the 
council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 
conduct;

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristics and those who do not share it;

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 
and those that do not share it.

16. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

17. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of:

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic;

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic;

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under- 
represented.

18. When undertaking the duties under section 149 the council must ensure:
a. The duty must be fulfilled before the decision in question is enacted:
b. The duty must be exercised in substance with ‘rigour and an open mind’; it 

is not a matter of ticking boxes and:
c. The duty is continuing; it does not end with the completion of any EIA and 

due regard must be had as policy evolves and is implemented

2



19. Ideas for CGS projects come from the local community, the majority via a 
simple project nomination form available in electronic and paper format.

Resource implications

20. The funding for the CGS capital programme from 2011 to 2021 was approved 
by the cabinet and is part of the council's overall capital programme as detailed 
in the Capital Programme 2011–2021 report dated 21 June 2011.

21. The allocation of funding per ward for the CGS capital programme was 
approved by the cabinet member for transport environment and recycling as 
detailed in the launch of CGS Capital Programme 2015-16 report dated 6 
August 2014.

22. The funding for the 2019-20 CGS capital programme was approved by the 
cabinet member for environment, transport management and air quality as 
detailed in allocation of funds to wards via CGS and devolved highways 
programmes report dated 20 December 2018.

23. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital costs 
of the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to organisations, the 
award amount announced at community council includes professional fees. The 
community council award notification to grant recipients details the grant 
amount only, excluding these fees.

24. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding. Projects 
that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be reported to multi-ward 
forum and available budgets may be reallocated to other projects. Revenue 
costs not covered by maintenance or the contractual liability period will fall upon 
the asset owner. The department will be notified of the likely costs before the 
schemes proceeds, in order to secure permission to implement the scheme.

25. After the defects and liability period, or three year maintenance period in the 
case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the asset owner, 
for example Housing, Parks, Highways, or in some cases external asset 
owners. Therefore, there are no revenue implications to the Highways division 
as a result of approving the proposed allocation. 

26. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored 
and reported on as part of the overall capital programme.

27. Value for money will be ensured when the contract is procured by following the 
council’s contract standing orders.

Consultation 

28. All CGS projects require consultation with stakeholders, including the project 
applicant, local residents, tenants and residents associations and local 
community groups where appropriate.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

3



29. The Local Government Act 2000 (‘the 2000 Act’) gives the Leader the power to 
delegate any executive function to whoever lawfully can undertake the function. 
The allocation of the CGS capital fund is an executive function.

30. Multi-ward areas are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act and 
executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader. The terms of the 
delegation are set out in part 3H of the council’s constitution.

31. This report recommends that the North East multi-ward area approves the 
allocation of funds to the individual projects specified at Appendix 1. Paragraph 
14, Part 3H of the Constitution enables Multi Ward areas to approve “the 
allocation of funds to CGS capital and revenue schemes of a local nature, using 
the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet”.

32. Multi-ward areas have further have powers under Part 3H of the Constitution to 
oversee and take responsibility for the development and implementation of the 
local schemes.

33. In allocating funding under the CGS programme, Multi-ward areas must have 
regard to the council’s equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010. The report author has demonstrated how those duties need to be 
considered in the body of the report at paragraphs 12 to 17 in the community 
impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance 

34. This report seeks the approval of the North East multi-ward area for the allocation 
of funds (£358,095+ £135,044 reallocated) for the 2020-21 CGS programme in 
the East Central multi-ward area from the list of applications set out in Appendix 1. 

35. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource implications 
in the report and that the proposed allocations will be contained within the CGS 
element of the council’s capital programme.

36. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 
recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Cabinet Report: Capital Programme 
2011–2021 – 21 June 2011

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

Copy and paste into your browser - 
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Progr
amme%202011-2021.pdf

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme 2011-21 – 21 June 
2011

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

4

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf


Copy and paste into your browser –
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General
%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf

Launch of Cleaner Greener Safer 
Capital Programme 2015/16 - 
August 2014 

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

Copy and paste into your browser –
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798

IDM report – 20 December 2018
Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Transport Management and Air 
Quality

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

Copy and paste into your browser –
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50018979&Opt=0

Cabinet Meeting Minutes 17 

September 2019
Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

Copy and paste into your browser –
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/g6415/Agenda%20frontsheet%20Tues
day%2017-Sep-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=0

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 All North East Multi Ward Cluster CGS Applications 

5

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50018979&Opt=0
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/g6415/Agenda%20frontsheet%20Tuesday%2017-Sep-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=0
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/g6415/Agenda%20frontsheet%20Tuesday%2017-Sep-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=0


AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Dale Foden, Head of Highways 
Report Author Craig Dove, Senior Project Manager

Version Final
Dated 12 February 2020

Key Decision? Yes
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments 

included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes

Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 17 February 2020

6



APPENDIX 1
North East Multi Ward area
Cleaner Greener Safer CGS programme 2020-21: Applications 

Reference Proposal Name Type of Application
1304948 Shad Thames Lighting 2020 CGS

1316054 Green roof on commercial units on West Lane. CGS
1308351 Southwark Park Tree Planting CGS
1314746 Bermondsey Joy-slide CGS

1315010
Nathaniel Montefiore Drinking Fountain, St.
James' Church Renovation Project CGS

1315627 Better Lighting for King Stairs Gardens CGS

1315683
Playground lights for St James playground in
Bermondsey. CGS

1295484
Cycle Hangar/Locker Request for residents of
Vanilla & Sesame Court CGS

1306279
Ensuring Greener and Safer Care House at
Bluegrove CGS

1309777 Vanilla and Sesame Court Bike Lockers CGS
1314362 Soft play equipment CGS

1314505
Butler's Wharf Riverside Trust design
competition CGS

1296141
Safe Cycle Parking/Storage for Wade House/
Bardell House CGS

1311795 Greener London/ Cyclehoop CGS
1312644 Bermondsey bee friendly evergreen hedge CGS

1314723

Improved planting on Cherry Garden Estate
raised flower beds - Phase 2.Funding from
2019/20 covered Phase 1 of the design. CGS

1315613 Swale for Tupman House CGS

1315854
Micawber House Recycling Bin Store and Area
for Bee Hives CGS

1315918 Planting & Greening Wrayburn House CGS
1316011 4 Square football pitch CGS
1316392 Keeton's Sheltered Community Garden CGS
1316930 Butler's Wharf Riverside Design Competition CGS
1317409 St Crispins Bikes and Cycles CGS

1317425
Do it right recycling-Bannernd were nearest
clothing donation box is. CGS

800002 Public Seating CGS or Highways
1317460 Bermondsey Viaduct Healthy Route CGS or Highways

Rotherhithe ward
Cleaner Greener Safer CGS programme 2020/21: Applications 

Reference Proposal Name Type of Application
1294619 Hawkstone T&RA CGS
1294992 Light Landings CGS

7



1296838 The Oasis Garden CGS
1299736 Bike hangar in Timber Pond Road CGS
1300179 Southwark Park Bowls Club Sunshade CGS

1304690
The Alphabet Garden at St Helena and
Oldfield Road CGS

1305451 Bermondsey Community Kitchen CGS
1305491 Active and Green Kids Project CGS

1310474
Securing remaining electrical cupboards on the
Osprey Estate CGS

1311556
Repaint lampposts and bollards in Rotherhithe
Mayflower 2020 focus area CGS

1311954 The Oasis Garden CGS

1312494
Southwark Park Nets: Heritage Board and
Womens Kit CGS

1315035
Jebez West Drinking Fountain Restoration
Project CGS

1315220 Canada estate Meadows CGS
1315353 The Plants of our Lives Mural CGS

1315390
Raised Timber planters for vegetable
gardening at Adams Gardens Estate CGS

1315482 Mayflower Hall Community Garden 2020 CGS

1315599
Adams Gardens walkway over the fence
planters CGS

1315870
Rotherhithe/Bermondsey Young Footballers
Facilities CGS

1316139 More Southwark Park Tennis Courts CGS
1316261 Recycling Bin Sheds CGS
1316417 Recycling Bins in Southwark Park CGS
1317182 Lighting for security at Orchard House. CGS

1317269
Fix Safety Guard Rail to Access Hatch to
Orchard House Roof. CGS

1317401 Instant shelters for park events CGS
1317458 Southwark Park healthy entrance CGS

800023 St Mary's Gardens Bin Store CGS

1300846 Traffic calming measure for Rotherhithe street CGS or Highways
1316676 Rotherhithe St footway resurfacing CGS or Highways

South Bermondsey ward
Cleaner Greener Safer CGS programme 2020/21: Applications 

Reference Proposal Name Type of Application
1299398 Bike Store for Weald Close flats CGS
1303971 Bermondsey Community Gardens CGS

1304615
Community allotment and improved play area
SE16 CGS

1313848 TRA Hall Equipment CGS
1313917 Neckinger Football pitch CGS
1313969 Rouel Road TRA Roof Garden CGS
1314045 Play, Learn and Grow project CGS

8



1315162 Longfield's Physical Activity CGS
1315503 Beatrice Alleyway - The Blue CGS
1315777 Grow Your Own Areas on  Rennie Estate. CGS
1315787 Grow Your Own Areas on  Rennie Estate. CGS
1316433 Shuttleworth park hedges CGS

1316449
Hedgerow along Blue Anchor Lane/Rock
Grove Way CGS

1316749
Blue Library extension and new community
space CGS

1316896
A greener cleaner outdoor learning
environment for Kintore Way Nursery School CGS

800006 Bermondsey Viaduct Healthy Route CGS or Highways

1316404
Safe Accessible Pavements on Blue Anchor
Lane CGS or Highways

1316378 Blue Anchor Lane Rad Closure CGS or Highways

Surrey Quays ward
Cleaner Greener Safer CGS programme 2020/21: Applications 

Reference Proposal Name Type of Application
1296580 Charge point CGS
1303873 Dockland Settlements Community Cabin CGS
1309426 Phs clean our air CGS
1310986 Dockland Settlements Community Cabin CGS
1312340 Lavender house bike storage CGS
1313105 Mayflower meadow CGS
1314735 Steers Way Underpass Improvements CGS

1314948 Greenland Dock Wild Birds Information Panel CGS
1315695 Hothousing Growth & Opportunity - 1 CGS
1315710 Hothousing Growth & Opportunity - 2 CGS
1315856 Hothousing Growth & Opportunity - 2 CGS
1316063 Cow lane lighting. CGS
1316568 Greenland Quay Tree Hugging Herb Planters CGS

1316712
Brunswick Quay & Greenland Dock water-
butts CGS

1317262

Renovation and development of the Nelson
Walk playground, and Pearson park
playground. CGS

1317446 Mayflower Play Park CGS
1317450 The Discovery Tech and Green Labs CGS
1317455 Raspberry patch in Redriff Road CGS

800005

Greenland Passage ASB (reducing ongoing)
greenland riverside public anti - social
behaviours CGS

1308124 cycle-friendly throughway by Mayflower pub CGS or Highways
1313949 Lavender Road Regeneration CGS or Highways

1317186
Protecting roadside verge opposite Hemlock
House and Nisa (Quebec Quarter) CGS or Highways

1317452 Surrey Docks cycle parking CGS or Highways

9



Item No. 
8.

Classification:
Open

Date:
11 March 2020

Meeting Name: 
North East Multi-Ward Forum

Report title: Allocation of Neighbourhoods Fund 2020-21

Ward(s) or groups affected: North Bermondsey, Rotherhithe, South Bermondsey and 
Surrey Docks 

From: Director of Communities

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the North East multi-ward area allocates a total of £120,000 of the 
Neighbourhoods Fund 2020-21 to the list of applications outlined in Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2. The Neighbourhoods Fund (NsF) was introduced in 2015 by merging two former 
revenue programmes known as Cleaner, Greener, Safer revenue (CGS) and 
Community Council Fund (CCF). The cabinet member for communities, employment 
and business authorised the amalgamation the CGS revenue fund and community 
council fund, into a single funding programme to create a new Neighbourhoods Fund 
for the 2015-16 round and onwards. This decision was taken on 12 December 2014.

3. The NsF has a borough-wide funding budget of £630,000 with an allocation of £10,000 
per councillor, for each ward. This is subject to annual budget setting process.

4. The purpose of introducing the NsF was to give local areas decision making powers 
over significant amounts of revenue funding, that they could allocate to meet locally 
determined priorities. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

5. Each ward will have £10,000 per councillor of revenue grants to allocate and it is 
proposed that any unallocated funds from the previous rounds (years) are to be 
carried forward and added to the financial year commencing 1 April 2020. 

6. The multi-ward areas will use the criteria set out below for the allocation of this 
funding. 

a. Creating opportunities for people from different backgrounds to get on well 
together; (e.g. community cohesion) 

b. Establishing projects which treat each other with respect and consideration (e.g. 
being a good neighbour, inter-generational contacts) 

c. Encouraging residents to be responsible for their own neighbourhood (e.g. 
community clean-ups; volunteering initiatives)

d. Specific measures to enhance a neighbourhood’s environment (e.g. increased 
cleaning).

7. A Multi-ward area may choose to allocate some of their NsF resources to their CGS 
capital allocations.

10
Agenda Item 8



8. Subject to the availability of resources, the NsF may be used to ‘buy’ services from the 
council.

9. As with any executive decision taken by multi-ward areas, this is subject to the 
council’s existing scrutiny arrangements.

 
Community impact statement

10. The roles and functions of multi-ward meetings include the promotion of involvement 
of local people in the democratic process. Multi-ward meetings take decisions on local 
matters including environmental improvement and community safety as well as 
consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that affect the area. 

11. An explicit objective within the Empowering Communities Programme (ward and multi-
ward meetings) is that they be used to actively engage as widely as possible with, and 
bring together, Southwark’s diverse local communities on issues of shared mutual 
interest. 

12. The allocation of the 2020-21 NsF North East multi-ward area will in the main, affect 
the people living in the North East multi-ward area. However, in making the area a 
better place to live and improving life chances for local people, the North East multi-
ward area NsF activities will have an impact on the whole of Southwark.

13. The NsF is an important tool in achieving community participation and cohesion.

14. In fulfilling the above objectives that multi-ward meetings have of bringing together and 
involving Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been given to 
the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the council to have due 
regard when taking decisions to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it 

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic and 
those that do not share it.

15. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. In this process there are no 
issues that contravene the Equality Act 2010.

16. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further defined in 
s.149 as having due regard to the need of:

 Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic.

 Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic.

 Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic participate in 
public life or any other activity in which they are under- represented.

11



 Due consideration was given to equalities impact assessment during the design 
of this awards process and no adverse impact was evident.

17. When undertaking the duties under section 149 the council must ensure:

 The duty must be fulfilled before the decision in question is enacted;

 The duty must be exercised in substance with ‘rigour and an open mind’; it is not 
a matter of ‘ticking boxes’; and

 The duty is continuing; it does not end with the completion of any EIA and due 
regard must be had as policy evolves and is implemented.

Resource implications

18. There are no resource implications.

Consultation

19. The NsF projects may require consultation with stakeholders, including the project 
applicant, local residents and tenants and residents associations where applicable.

Financial implications 

20. The North East multi-ward NsF has been allocated a total of £120,000, for 2020-21. 

21. It is recommended that multi-wards set aside some unallocated funds from previous 
years in order to prevent an over allocation of funds, as well as to act as a contingency 
from which urgent or incidental requests can be funded throughout the year. It must 
also be noted that the unallocated figures reported in the previous paragraph 
represent current best estimates as the 2019-20 funding round is only finally over on 
31 March 2020.

22. Projects that are unlikely to be completed within the year will be reported to the North 
East multi-ward and available funding may be allocated to other projects or carried 
over to the following financial year.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

23. The Local Government Act 2000 (“the 2000 Act”) gives the Leader the power to 
delegate any executive function to whoever can lawfully undertake the function. The 
allocation of the neighbourhoods fund is an executive function.

24. Multi-ward meetings are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act and 
executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader.

25. The delegation can be found in Part 3H of the Constitution, which enables area 
committees to approve “the allocation of funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and 
revenue schemes of a local nature, using the resources and criteria identified by the 
cabinet”. This is therefore a decision that the multi-ward meeting is empowered to 
take.

26. The Localism Act 2011 gives councils a general power of competence whereby they 
have power to do anything that individuals generally may do. This power can be used 

12



even if legislation already exists that allows a local authority to do the same thing. 
However the general power of competence does not enable a local authority to do 
anything which is was restricted or prevented from doing under the previous 
legislation. 

27. The general power of competence includes the power to:

(a) incur expenditure
(b) give financial assistance to any person
(c) enter into arrangements or agreements with any person
(d) co-operate with or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of any person
(e) exercise on behalf of any person any functions of that person; and
(f) provide staff, goods, services or accommodation to any person.

28. The provision of funding under the NsF falls within the scope of the kind of activities 
the council can undertake under the general power of competence as this includes the 
power to give financial assistance to any person.

29. In allocating funding under the NsF multi-wards must have regard to the council’s 
equality duties set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report author has 
demonstrated how those duties have been considered in the body of the report at 
paragraphs 14, 15, 16 and 17 of the report.

30. This report is recommending that the multi-wards approve the allocation of monies 
from the NsF 2020-21 as specified at Appendix 1. 

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance 

31. The 2020-21 budget allocation for the neighbourhoods fund will be agreed by council 
assembly as part of the budget setting process. The report notes the allocation is 
£10,000 per councillor by ward and thus £120,000 should be awarded to the North 
East multi Ward.

32. Paragraph 21 notes the need to maintain a contingency element from the funding 
available for urgent or incidental requests. This is a prudent measure to assist in the 
effective running of the Neighbourhoods Fund.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Neighbourhoods Fund Report 
IDM

Housing and Modernisation 
160 Tooley Street,
London SE1 2QH

Forid Ahmed
0207 525 5540

Bermondsey and Rotherhithe 
Neighbourhoods Fund 2019-20 
Awards

Housing and Modernisation
160 Tooley Street,
London SE1 2QH

Bridget Galloway
0207 525 1780

13



APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21

AUDIT TRAIL 

Lead Officer Forid Ahmed, Empowering Communities Manager
Report Author Bridget Galloway - Empowering Communities Programme Officer 

Version Final
Dated 26 February 2020

Key Decision Yes
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance  
and Governance

Yes Yes

Strategic Director of Housing 
and Modernisation

No No

Cabinet member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 27 February 2020

14



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1316658 S.E.T.R.A  
(Setchell 
TRA)

Improving 
mobility & 
reducing 
Lower Back 
pain with Yoga

2 Classes:

1) Young At Heart community Yoga has been running in the hall for 3 years now at cost of £1 to 
participants. All participants have reported increased mobility and pain relief.

2) YHLB (Yoga for Healthy Lower Backs) is a  new 12 week course. Participants will attend 1 class a 
week. It is  safe, effective, simple to understand, easy to practise at home with everyday props, 
gradually-progressing (Pain Relief, postural awareness to begin with and more challenging poses 
that help with mobility and strength of whole body for returning to hobbies, e.g. sport, gardening 
etc.)  Plan to run this 3 x PA so 36 sufferers benefit.

£5,310.00

1316480 Construction 
Youth Trust

Construction 
into Schools

We want to facilitate positive interaction between young people in local schools and employers 
involved in local regeneration projects, to raise awareness of local career pathways and create a 
pipeline of young people entering employment. Employer engagement was found to reduce the 
likelihood of young people becoming NEET and improve future earning potentials of young 
people. We will focus on supporting young people least likely to receive careers education 
support. 
Southwark has the 2nd highest rate of youth unemployment in London. Young Londoners are in 
danger of long term unemployment as they lack the technical skills employers seek. With labour 
markets shifting from high to low skilled jobs, Southwark youths are at risk of not achieving their 
career potentials. Southwark is currently undergoing massive regeneration which will create a 
pipeline of education/training/employment opportunities for thousands of young people over the 
next 10-15 years. 
Our aim is to use the construction industry as a powerful tool of social mobility. Construction is 
one of UK’s largest sectors with a plethora of career pathways and progression routes. Yet, there 
is a lack of understanding of these careers. Research found that 50% of young people were given 
career advice on construction opportunities. Past funding from Southwark Neighbourhood Funds 
has enabled us to engage over 5,000 young people since 2017. 88% of participants have increased 
their knowledge of the built environment sector.

£7,500.00 15



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1316477 Rotherhithe 
and 
Bermondsey 
Choral 
Society

The Mayflower 
Pilgrims by 
Clive Jenkins  
concert 
performance

As part of the Mayflower 2020 celebrations, the Rotherhithe and Bermondsey Choral Society will 
give a large scale musical account, with classical orchestra,  (composed in 2005, in an accessible 
style) of the voyage of the Mayflower ship with its safe arrival. 

As the only classical music group in north Southwark that performs large scale classical music 
pieces, with amateur local singers and young professional instrumentalists, we gives residents the 
unique opportunity to experience such a genre which they would otherwise not have in the area. 

Importantly we do not charge any entrance fees at our events, only a voluntary retiring 
collection, which gives a complete outreach to all concert goers.
Children are welcome and the venue is fully accessible, so all can experience our performance 
project.
The music is written for an open-access, community choir, which RBCS is, so that the music can 
include all levels of ability. It lasts approximately 50 minutes and includes the choir, a Solo 
Baritone singer with a medium sized orchestra.

£  2,780.00

1316406 Millwall For 
All

1st Touch 
Football 
Project

Millwall for All aim to deliver 1 two hour session for 40 boys and girls who are aged between 8-15 
years old. These sessions will be delivered by both male and female coaches from Millwall’s 
football club, this will ensure that all participants have gender specific role model. The project will 
focus on engaging young from Four squares estate. The session will focus on a different age 
group. Four Square’s session will be aimed at 8-11 years old for the first hour 12-15 years old for 
the second hour. By the end of this project we aim to have increased the participation levels of all 
young interested in playing football as well as ensure access to opportunity for young people 
wanting to develop in football.

Providing structured football sessions will help young people’s health and wellbeing. Sports 
improve physical and mental health and help lower obesity rates. Our activity programme will 
also enable all young people to build their confidence and skills, also there has been a significant 
and rising problem with drugs and knife crime, including stabbing, this project will ensure that 
young people have positive role models and move them away from gangs.  

£  5,760.00

16



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1316372 The Salmon 
Youth Centre

Adventuring 
Together

“The Adventuring Together Project” will engage 400 young people from the local community. 
These young people will age from 6-19yrs old (19-25yrs specifically disabled young people) in 
accessible non-traditional adventure based activities. 

By taking part in the project the young people will-

1. Improve their levels of confidence, motivation and engagement in other activities.

2. Achieve physical challenges and quick youth work outcomes without much prior skill or ability 

3. Develop skills around communication, team-working, safe risk-taking.

4. Share unique experiences that strengthen relationships and improve self-esteem.

The Centre has developed an indoor ropes course that enables young people to climb up a 12m 
climbing wall, leap off balconies and swing across the sports hall as if flying in a challenging yet 
safe environment.

We will partner with Climbing Tuition to deliver 55 x  two hour sessions  throughout the year. 
Each age group and disabled group will be able to access 6 weeks of climbing and adventure 
activities on rotation throughout the year. The project will start from April 2020. An experienced 
adventure worker will run the sessions and provide additional training to staff/volunteer leaders, 
to maintain our 100% safety record. Young people can gain accreditation/certification in each of 
the adventure activities, and eventually work towards an AQA award in climbing if interested.

£  4,800.00

17



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1316187 Bede House 
Association

The Buzz on 
The Blue 2020

This Project will provide out of school activities, personal, social and educational developmental 
opportunities for children and young people aged 11 to 19 years, with a strong emphasis on 
safety and community. This project aims to engage young people who live near The Blue Market 
or attend the surrounding schools. By providing a safe place to talk about their fears we will be 
supporting vulnerable and disadvantaged young people to break through negative perceptions, 
express their voices and continue their journey to fulfilling their potential.

The youth workers will work with the young people at the crossroads of five academies in both 
discussion and fun activities. in this case we will bring a fully fitted mobile music studio to the 
market. Young people may develop their creativity, skills and self-esteem and resilience. There 
will be plenty of opportunities to engage with the local community and the businesses along the 
Blue Market to increase community cohesion.

£10,200.00

1316158 Nigeria 
National 
Community 
Group

Youth 
engagement, 
care of elderly, 
cultural shows 
summer bond

As a community group, our activities for the youth are important in teaching them about culture 
and how to be a good citizen in society. This is also linked to knife crime and awareness where we 
invited stakeholders in the community to speak on the causes and remedies to prevention of 
knife crime in the community. We held summit on knife crime on the 5th may 2018, where 
councillors from South Bermondsey neighbourhood police and service providers were in 
attendance. Care of our elderly in the community where they are able to interact whilst teaching 
them their local and healthy living. Organise cultural day where community showcase their rich 
cultural display and summer bonding at the sadside. Above are intended to build community 
cohesion within the minority group in the community.

£  5,050.00 18



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1315949 Riverside 
Parents and 
Carers 
Association

Soft Play 
sessions and 
Events

This is an ongoing project whereby our group provides: a safe and clean environment for under 5s 
to get independent and social play, as well as much needed exercise; fosters connections and 
combats isolation for parents; and provides occasional on-site access to representatives from 
groups such NHS Oral Health & Nutrition, Speech and language Therapist and working in 
partnership with Children centre also offering Community Family worker.   Most families in the 
area live in flats with limited play areas and/or no designated safe indoor or outdoor spaces.  We 
provide children the best start to a healthy & active lifestyle with a unique opportunity to run and 
play in a large and safe indoors environment. Held in a full sized gymnasium set up with soft play 
equipment this area provide space where under 5's can exercise and explore in an unrestrained 
space regardless of the weather conditions. Children can develop their gross motor skills using 
the various equipment set up such as climbing frames, stepping stones, hula hoops, mini-
trampolines, kicking balls, running etc. Southwark has a poor record for childhood obesity and our 
sessions play a pivotal part in helping the young children who attend get important exercise up to 
4 times a week. Our special events sessions organised throughout the year, are specifically aimed 
at focusing on different skills for the children, as well as the added benefit of bringing the 
community together. 

£  6,132.52

1315902 Bermondsey 
Spa Residents 
Association

Funding for 
Bermondsey 
Spa Residents 
Association

Bermondsey Spa Residents Association ( BSRA ) is a community project that has been going on for 10 years 
since the Bermondsey Spa development has been built. It takes active approach in dealing with multitude of 
issues that residents of the 17 buildings have, ranging from building and grounds maintenance, issues related 
to service charges and mismanagement by the freeholder. BSRA holds monthly meetings with the freeholder, 
organises up to 4 residents meetings a year, including AGM and maintains a residents website, all without 
any outside funding. Grant that would cover running costs for a year would help us continue doing the good 
work and overcome lack of available funds for all the activities we are committed to do.

£1,000.00

19



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1315011 The 
Bermondsey 
Artists' 
Group 
managing 
Southwark 
Park Gallery

Drop-in 
Gardening 
Sessions for 
Disadvantaged 
Families

Our project is a programme of free weekly drop-in gardening sessions for local disadvantaged 
families with pre-schoolers from the local estates surrounding Southwark Park within the North 
East Area (Surrey Docks, Rotherhithe and North Bermondsey), in our beautiful Community 
Allotment in the:

Gallery courtyard, situated in Southwark Park. Pre-schoolers learn the benefits of healthy eating 
for life, giving them the best possible start to their food journey.

Parents, grandparents and carers work with their children to grow, harvest and eat fresh fruit and 
vegetables in this idyllic allotment.

The families we work with live on the nearby densely populated social housing estates where the 
proportion of residents living in flats in the nearby social housing estates is 61% higher than the 
national average and the present focus on new high-density.

Housing in the area is only expected to cause a further shortage of garden spaces.

The area suffers from one of the highest rates of child obesity in England, with 30% of 10-11 year 
olds in Bermondsey and Rotherhithe diagnosed as obese. This is significantly higher than the 
national average of 19%.

We have an upgraded Community Allotment with better access to young gardeners, prams, 
buggies and wheelchairs thanks to winning the local popular vote and receiving funding from 
Tesco Bags of Help in 2017 and securing additional capital Cleaner Greener Safer.

£  6,072.00

20



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1314675 Create [legal 
name Create 
(Arts) Ltd]

More Creative 
(MC)

MC will deliver 16 creative arts workshops with 10 disabled adults from Bede House (BH) & 10 
local primary schoolchildren in an artform (eg. animation/drama) chosen by BH/the school.

INTENDED ACHIEVEMENTS: MC brings participants together through arts workshops to break 
down barriers between disabled and non-disabled people. Guided by Create’s 
professional/practicing artists, participants will work in mixed groups/engaging in social 
interaction/learning from one another/developing their creativity/social skills/confidence. 
Participants will share/perform their work, increasing their self-esteem.

NEED: Disabled people are less likely to participate in cultural activities, facing negative 
attitudes/prejudice/assumptions about their abilities (Arts Council England). They are often 
socially excluded and 8/10 are bullied (Mencap). 2/3 of the British public feel uncomfortable 
talking to disabled people, which may stem from a lack of understanding (Scope). MC promotes 
consideration and shared understanding, encouraging integration of disabled people within 
society.

BENEFITTING RESIDENTS: Participants will develop skills they can take back into their 
homes/school/community: confidence/empathy/positive social 
interaction/teamwork/communication/shared understanding. Participants will share their ideas/ 
perform/exhibit their work to an audience of local residents/families and friends, helping the 
participants feel valued and proud of their achievements and the community feel involved.

£  4,473.00

21



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

0000003 Southwark 
Park 
Association 
1869

Southwark 
Park and King's 
Stairs Gardens 
Summer 
Programme

To provide a programme of 10 free summer activities for the community:
Southwark Park
• A Sunday bandstand concert – June  
• Medals and certificates for Bobby Abel Cricket Cup for Primary Schools - May 
• Medals and certificates for Southwark Park Football Cup for children – June
• Bermondsey Carnival Tennis Day in Southwark Park for adults and children - July
• ‘Come and Try’ Bowls Evening for adults - August
• Guided Bat Walk for adults – late August/early September
2 x Heritage Talks

150th Anniversary of The Old Nursery and the Refreshment House - May
Southwark Park 100 Years Ago - September
King’s Stairs Gardens
Spring Bank Holiday Family Picnic – Sunday 24th May
Guided Tree and Plant Walk - July
Marketing - 5,000 events programme flyers. The flyer will go online on our website.
The events have proven popular in previous years and offer free recreation for all ages.

£  4,436.00

22



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1306308 BLW 
Manager

Big Local 
Works

Big Local Works is a local charity providing essential services to the local community including 
preparing residents for employment, supporting enterprise and social entrepreneurs and benefit 
and welfare support. 

Previously BLW has worked with several other training providers but are now in a position to 
produce our own five-week Employability Training programme, running three days a week, with 
10-12 participants per cohort. This training program will be repeated six times throughout the 
year with a two week recruitment and review period. Our immediate area is in the top 10% of the 
most deprived neighbourhoods in the country, outlining the need for a course like ours that will 
produce sustainable change in people’s lives, offering support around lifestyle, self-awareness, 
wellbeing and/or personal finance/benefits advice, in order to sustain a job or apprenticeship. 
The course will focus on employability skills, work experience, CV’s, money management, 
customer service, interview skills and the next steps to employment. There will also be follow up 
opportunities for participants to gain advice benefits and welfare support. We believe this 
training will result in genuine life changing skills and support for local residents to get back in to 
positive and productive work. Not just any work but well paid and secure jobs that deliver 
positive economic opportunities for local people. 

£  4,800.00

23



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1305870 Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen

Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen

Bermondsey Community Kitchen is a non for profit community café and training facility. Our 
project has successfully run long term catering training for several years however we have 
identified a need in our local community through liaising with other community groups 
approaching us for support and also individuals requesting a varied range of courses for short 
term training from 1 to 5 days. Our project will be delivering courses from the Charted Institute of 
Environmental Health including the Level 1 Introduction to Food Safety certificate aimed at those 
new to food safety and will train participants in food preparation and contamination health risks 
and controls. The Level 2 Foundation to Food Safety certificate will be aimed at those looking to 
develop their skills or small enterprises starting their own businesses. The Level 3 Intermediate to 
Food Safety certificate is aimed at those who will be supervising and managing others in a food 
environment. These courses will benefit residents through improving their employability and 
employment opportunities. The project will work with numerous other local community groups 
to recruit participants for the courses. 

The courses will work with 12 people every month for a year, supporting them through Level 1, 2 
and 3 in Food Safety. This will take approximately 7 days each month spread across four weeks. 
Therefore, we will support 144 people through all three levels over the course of a year.

£  3,942.20

1304876 STAMP (Shad 
Thames Area 
Management 
Partnership)

Shad Thames 
Trail Update 
2020

In 2014 we produced our first version of Shad Thames Trail with the latest version in 2018. 
They've been hugely popular, Providing everyone who lives, works & visits here a beautiful 
informative guide to strengthen their connection with& pride in the area & which they can keep. 
We hand these out free at all Shad Thames events - ours are always well attended, inclusive & 
welcoming. - nearby events. The Trail now needs updating to reflect recent developments & we 
have almost run out of 2018 stock.

£1,450.00

1304821 Trinity 
Newington 
residences 
association

Carol Concert Seasonal outdoor carol singing to bring together,  not only residents, but other people living in 
the area to promote a sense of community. To offer to all comers a welcome and shared 
experience

£790.00

24



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

1294873 Southwark House & Feed 
the Homeless 
for Winter

The project aims to improve the quality of life of carers and young carers from a wide range of 
backgrounds. The activities that we are proposing for this project are: Yoga and meditation We 
engage carers that are at risk of social exclusion.  We will encourage carers to increase 
participation in Sport by offering free yoga classes to promote healthier and more active lives. We 
base our project in research that proves that in recent years, there has been evidence of 
disturbingly high rates of mental ill-health among carers as well as risk of social isolation, money 
worries and physical health problems. With our project, we aim to alleviate some of the physical, 
mental and social problems that being a carer can cause. Research has indicated that physical 
activity can contribute to the reduction of problematic levels of anxiety and depression. A range 
of evidence suggests that for carers, sports and physical activities are positive features of their 
achievements. Our project aims to support vulnerable carers to improve their well-being and to 
have healthier and more active lifestyles, which in return will help them in reducing their levels of 
stress and anxiety, get rid of their frustration and anger and increase their self-esteem as well as 
in their integration in the society and development of sense of belonging to a group. The classes 
will be free of charge, which means that the carers will save some money while they are having 
fun and meeting new people.

£5,550.00

1312129 Shad Thames 
Residents 
Association 
(STRA)

Cleaner Shad 
Thames

This project aims to continue to provide funding for additional cleaning (via the Council's cleaning 
contract) in the Shad Thames area, ensuring a cleaner environment for residents, businesses and 
visitors alike. Extra cleaning will be provided to address the problem of discarded cigarette ends 
and other waste bin rubbish at weekends and bank holidays, and in addition to the standard 
Council cleaning service. The impact is a cleaner environment for residents, visitors and 
businesses in the area, and a strong statement that the people who live in the area care about 
keeping the environment up to a standard to be expected of an historic Conservation Area

£  3,500.00

25



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
North 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your group

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total 
amount:

0000002 Make-it-to-
the-mat

Yoga for 
Flexibility, 
Wellbeing and 
a Healthy 
Lower Back

Young At Heart community Yoga has been running in the hall for 3 years now at cost of £1 to 
participants. All participants have reported increased mobility and pain relief.

YHLB  (Yoga for Healthy Lower Backs) is a  new 12 week course. Participants will attend 1 class a 
week. It is  safe, effective, simple to understand, easy to practise at home with everyday props, 
gradually-progressing (Pain Relief, postural awareness to begin with and more challenging poses 
that help with mobility and strength of whole body for returning to hobbies, e.g. sport, gardening 
etc.) 
As many of the students on classes come from  South,North West Bermondsey, Rotherhithe, 
Walworth and London Bridge area it makes sense to apply to all these wards.

£  5,310.00

26



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
Rotherhithe

Name of your 
group

Name of 
your project 
or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1317501 Bizzie Bodies 
CIC

Tech Hub The Project will have the following Outcomes as part of its Deliverables:

Creation & Running Of Unique Digital Design / Makercraft Skills Youth Clubs 

3 Days Per Week Including Wednesdays, Fridays, Saturdays And Holidays.

The Development And Technical Support Of Locally Accessible Popup And Dedicated Digital Design 
Makerspace In A Local Venue For Young People.

This will be achieved by incorporating and coordinating all the resources we have covering:

3D Digital Design - 2D Digital Design - Coding - Electronics

Robotics - Wearable Tech - Makercraft.

All the Activities, Workshops and Events will be delivered as part of the overarching project with emphasis 
on exploring:

New opportunities to learn and collaborate, Innovative Ideas While Expressing Creativity.

Participants  will be set on the path to learning important Technical Skills using ins industries such as 3D 
Digital Design. They will have continued access to equipment, technical resources, new opportunities for 
learning, ways to collaborate and create. To facilitate this Digital Design /Makercraft, the space will be 
open 3 days per week minimum.

With the support of Industry Experts they lead, develop and promote projects that will allow them to 
experiment technology, whether Future, Current or Traditional, will continue to affect and impact the way 
things are taught and presented to young people. 

£  8,600.00

1316320 Make-it-to-the-
mat

Yoga for 
Flexibility, 
Wellbeing and 
a Healthy 
Lower Back

Young At Heart community Yoga has been running in the hall for 3 years now at cost of £1 to participants. 
All participants have reported increased mobility and pain relief.

YHLB  (Yoga for Healthy Lower Backs) is a  new 12 week course. Participants will attend 1 class a week. 
It is  safe, effective, simple to understand, easy to practise at home with everyday props, gradually-
progressing (Pain Relief, postural awareness to begin with and more challenging poses that help with 
mobility and strength of whole body for returning to hobbies, e.g. sport, gardening etc.) 

£  5,310.00

27



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
Rotherhithe

Name of your 
group

Name of 
your project 
or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

As many of the students on classes come from South, North and  West Bermondsey, Rotherhithe, 
Walworth and London Bridge area it makes sense to apply to all these wards.

1316085 Central 
Southwark 
Community 
Hub

Holiday Club The project is set to tackle Holiday Hunger, deliver healthy eating skills development, social inclusion and 
tackling food insecurities for families with young children (under 11).

To provide volunteering opportunities for those who want to get into training and employment.

Aim: To deliver the project at 6 different venues, following a successful round of clubs during the Easter 
and Summer Holidays in 2019.

The activities will include arts and crafts, music workshops, healthy cooking, games, sports, trips, etc.

The consultations with support workers in schools and children's centres as well as the feedback from 
parents, carers and children during the last holiday activities in 2018 & 2019 highlighted the need to have 
more holiday provision where children and their parents can have an avenue to engage in social activities 
with a healthy lunch.

Restructuring and cuts to children's centres have also led to an increase in child safety referrals with more 
families being socially isolated and an increase in demand for support from faith and community groups.

Central Southwark Community Hub has had success in reaching families that need extra support and 
therefore will do collaborative work, which includes continued but enhanced work with Little Peoples 
World and Parent Skills to Go.

£  3,500.00

1315886 St Helena & 
Oldfield T & R 
A

Active 
Lifestyles (Thi 
Chi, Pilates 
and Zumba 
Classes)

We know how beneficial exercise is for health and wellbeing. Tai Chi is low impact so is good for people 
with arthritis. It relaxes the mind and body and improves balance, flexibility, strength and co-ordination. It 
can be done seated for less mobile people.

Pilates is a more active type of exercise. It is a refreshing mind and body workout. It develops a strong 
core, flat abdominals and strong back. Pilates teaches correct and effecting breathing. Learning to breath 
properly can reduce stress. Pilates conditions the whole body. It can be used in physical therapy to 
rehabilitate injuries. Zumba is very fast, energetic and joyous and gives a great workout. The Tai Chi is 
during the day and has a core group who have been attending regularly. The Zumba is during the evening 
and the Pilates has been asked for and will be set up during the evening to encourage people who are at 
work. We are eager to have these classes in our community centre to reduce isolation by getting people 
to engage and meet other people.

£  4,760.00

1315624 Mayflower 
Tenants 

Mayflower 
community 

Our community coach trip to Margate aims to promote inclusion, community, combat isolation and involve 
young people - a day out to seaside for everyone bringing our community together. We will include a visit 

£     750.00

28



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
Rotherhithe

Name of your 
group

Name of 
your project 
or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

Association coach trip 2020 to Turner Contemporary Gallery if we visit Margate.

1315614 The Friends Of 
Southwark Park

Southwark 
Park 2020

Four free afternoon music / concert band / entertainment events in Southwark Park / King George's Field 
during Summer 2020 for everyone; the events will encourage people from different backgrounds / ages / 
characteristics to be together in our public park and enjoy the summer; this will help promote wellbeing, 
community, respect and consideration for each other. We particularly hope to encourage youth to both 
perform and be audience positively; There are less and less free to enter events every year and this kind 
of event that usually takes place in parks around the UK - on bandstands or stages - can provide a 
wonderful day for everyone who comes including those who for any reason cannot go on holiday and for 
all those who have low incomes including families.

£  3,000.00

1315352 Albion Street 
Steering Group

ASSG Summer 
Party

The prolonged delays in progressing the new build on the former library / civic centre site and the two 
derelict public houses continue to prove a challenge to the formulation of a cohesive local community and 
the viability of the trading units. The annual Albion Street summer party provides an opportunity for the 
people to network and raise the [profile of the street and its immediate area.
2020 is likely to see a number of significant building projects in the street. It is therefore vital that 
measures are taken to minimise the impact of these works on trade, well being and quality of life.

£     650.00

1314802 The 
Bermondsey 
Artists' Group 
managing 
Southwark Park 
Gallery

Drop-in 
Gardening 
Sessions for 
Disadvantaged 
Families

Our project is a programme of free weekly drop-in gardening sessions for local disadvantaged families 
with pre-schoolers from the local estates surrounding Southwark Park within the North East Area, in our 
beautiful Community Allotment in the gallery courtyard, situated in Southwark Park. Pre-schoolers learn 
the benefits of healthy eating for life, giving them the best possible start to their food journey.
Parents, grandparents and carers work with their children to grow, harvest and eat fresh fruit and 
vegetables in this idyllic allotment. 
The families we work with live on the nearby densely populated social housing estates where the 
proportion of residents living in flats in the nearby social housing estates is 61% higher than the national 
average and the present focus on new high-density housing in the area is only expected to cause a 
further shortage of garden spaces.
The area suffers from one of the highest rates of child obesity in England, with 30% of 10-11 year olds in 
Bermondsey and Rotherhithe diagnosed as obese. This is significantly higher than the national average 
of 19%. 
We have an upgraded Community Allotment with better access to young gardeners, prams, buggies and 
wheelchairs thanks to winning the local popular vote and receiving funding from Tesco Bags of Help in 
2017 and securing additional capital Cleaner Greener Safer.

£  6,072.00

1313855 Breath of Life Breath of Life People with breathing difficulties are taught breathing and associated muscle exercises as well as 
singing. By strengthening the muscles around the chest, tummy, neck, throat & face, as well as being 
taught techniques to improve breathing out, we become more knowledgeable and able to manage our 
own breathing problem. This means we are no longer fighting for each breath so the stress and panic 
which comes from feeling you cannot breathe can be managed. Singing gives a feel good factor, 
releasing endorphins - 'happy hormones', and can reduce the impact of anxiety and depression. The air in 
this part of London is polluted because of the amount of traffic. The medical faculty are talking about 
‘social prescribing’ - we have realised that we offer a form of holistic medicine which could help. Long 

£  5,690.00

29



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
Rotherhithe

Name of your 
group

Name of 
your project 
or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

term breathing problems require both medication and learned breathing techniques, so that a person has 
the ability to feel better about themselves and their condition, and so that they will get more benefit from 
the drugs prescribed. Instead of being a passive patient, they will become an interactive patient, taking 
more control over their condition. Singing together as a group is a fun social activity which is as important 
as the physical wellbeing it produces because it takes away the loneliness.

1313747 Canada Estate 
Tenants and 
Residents' 
Association

Coach trip to 
Brighton

A coach trip that takes out  tenants  from our estate  gives them a chance to take the children out and the 
older people to have a day at the seaside helps them to bond together to create a better community

£     695.00

1313422 Rotherhithe  
Festival Group

The 
Rotherhithe 
festival

The Rotherhithe Festival is held every year in King Georges fields.
It brings the community together  helping to build a better understanding of your neighbours and  helps to 
create community Cohesion it helps to breakdown barriers and for local tenants and residents to come 
together for a free day of children’s rides music and information stalls

£  6,372.00

1312676 Parentskills2go 
(Little People's 
World)

Easter and 
summer Family 
Holiday project

To provide a range of social and fun activities that will promote the physical, emotional and economic well 
being of families with young children in the local area. It is also to further enhance   healthy eating and 
social inclusion and tackle food insecurities for families. 

 To provide volunteering opportunities for those who want to get into training and employment. The 
project is for  for one week in Easter and three weeks in the summer. For 2.5 hours  The activities will 
include arts and crafts, music workshops, games, sports, trips, etc. The feedback from parents, carers 
and children during the last holiday activities in 2019 highlighted the need to have more holiday provision 
where children and their parents can have an avenue to engage in social activities with a healthy lunch 
and provide an avenue for families have  low paid jobs to have a space for their children to engage in 
social activities at a subsidized cost while they are at work . There is an increase in child safety referrals 
with more families being socially isolated and an increase in demand for support from faith and 
community groups, while children are left at home to their own devices while parents try to work.  There 
continues to be a lack of safe local play areas Little People's World under the umbrella of Parentskills2go 
will continue to reach families that need extra support in partnership with other agencies including schools 
and children's centres .

£  4,930.00

1312143 George Walter 
Court Social 
Fund

George Walter 
Court 
Companion 
club

It would enable the residents to socialise in the communal day room. 

It would allow the social fund to buy games and pay for  professional entertainers  to come and entertain 
the residents .Which would help them to engage in a safe friendly environment where they would be 
secure.

It would also help them to foster a positive attitude to their neighbours and enhance their mental health 
and wellbeing.

£  1,100.00

30



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
Rotherhithe

Name of your 
group

Name of 
your project 
or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

It would also have positive effects on their general health and wellbeing and encourage them to be more 
active together instead of feeling alone and isolated.

1311583 Southwark 
Helping Hands 

Exercise and 
Spa Therapy 
and Day Trip

We are aiming to improve the life styles of the club members with challenging difficulties through physical 
movement complimenting with relaxation through spa therapy and seaside day trip. 

£  4,800.00

1309067 Southwark Park 
Association 
1869

Southwark 
Park and King's 
Stairs Gardens 
Summer 
Programme

To provide a programme of 10 free summer activities for the community:

Southwark Park
• A Sunday bandstand concert – June  
• Medals and certificates for Bobby Abel Cricket Cup for Primary Schools - May 
• Medals and certificates for Southwark Park Football Cup for children – June
• Bermondsey Carnival Tennis Day in Southwark Park for adults and children - July
• ‘Come and Try’ Bowls Evening for adults - August
• Guided Bat Walk for adults – late August/early September
2 x Heritage Talks

150th Anniversary of The Old Nursery and the Refreshment House - May  
Southwark Park 100 Years Ago - September

King’s Stairs Gardens
Spring Bank Holiday Family Picnic – Sunday 24th May
Guided Tree and Plant Walk - July

Marketing - 5,000 events programme flyers. The flyer will go online on our website.

The events have proven popular in previous years and offer free recreation for all ages.

£  4,436.00

1306979 Time & Talents Community 
Potluck and 
Christmas 
Drop-in

The project's aim is convene local people of all ages every month for an inter-generational community 
Potluck (a communal meal with shared food) to bond as a community, spending enjoyable time together, 
creating a fun 'family meal' atmosphere, and providing a forum for everyone to discuss community needs 
and co-design new programme ideas, including children, families, adults and older people. We will also 
run two special Potluck Christmas Days over Christmas, one for families and one for adults. We piloted a 
small version of this last year, which really proved the local need for this; with barely any promotion we 
had a 'full house' of people enjoying each other's company, who would otherwise spend a Christmas 
period of up to two weeks alone. 

All of these events will benefit the community in multiple ways:

- Those who don't want to attend a particular activity but just want to spend time with others in a 'family' 

£  6,400.00

31



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
Rotherhithe

Name of your 
group

Name of 
your project 
or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

atmosphere can enjoy a relaxed and fun community meal.

- People can help shape our programmes, other professionals and charities can come and reach those 
they might otherwise not, including giving talks about local services.

- Those struggling with food poverty can come and eat a meal and take food away with no stigma.

- Inter-generational connections will be built, and isolated people will have the opportunity to meet a whole 
range of people of all ages.

1306312 Big Local 
Works

Big Local 
Works

Big Local Works is a local charity providing essential services to the local community including preparing 
residents for employment, supporting enterprise and social entrepreneurs and benefit and welfare 
support. 

Previously BLW has worked with several other training providers but are now in a position to produce our 
own five-week Employability Training programme, running three days a week, with 10-12 participants per 
cohort. This training program will be repeated six times throughout the year with a two week recruitment 
and review period. Our immediate area is in the top 10% of the most deprived neighbourhoods in the 
country, outlining the need for a course like ours that will produce sustainable change in people’s lives, 
offering support around lifestyle, self-awareness, wellbeing and/or personal finance/benefits advice, in 
order to sustain a job or apprenticeship. The course will focus on employability skills, work experience, 
CV’s, money management, customer service, interview skills and the next steps to employment. There 
will also be follow up opportunities for participants to gain advice benefits and welfare support. We believe 
this training will result in genuine life changing skills and support for local residents to get back in to 
positive and productive work. Not just any work but well paid and secure jobs that deliver positive 
economic opportunities for local people. 

£  4,800.00

1306004 Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen

Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen

Bermondsey Community Kitchen is a non for profit community café and training facility. Our project has 
successfully run long term catering training for several years however we have identified a need in our 
local community through liaising with other community groups approaching us for support and also 
individuals requesting a varied range of courses for short term training from 1 to 5 days. Our project will 
be delivering courses from the Charted Institute of Environmental Health including the Level 1 
Introduction to Food Safety certificate aimed at those new to food safety and will train participants in food 
preparation and contamination health risks and controls. The Level 2 Foundation to Food Safety 
certificate will be aimed at those looking to develop their skills or small enterprises starting their own 
businesses. The Level 3 Intermediate to Food Safety certificate is aimed at those who will be supervising 
and managing others in a food environment. These courses will benefit residents through improving their 
employability and employment opportunities. The project will work with numerous other local community 
groups to recruit participants for the courses. 

£  3,942.20

32



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward: 
Rotherhithe

Name of your 
group

Name of 
your project 
or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

The courses will work with 12 people every month for a year, supporting them through Level 1, 2 and 3 in 
Food Safety. This will take approximately 7 days each month spread across four weeks. Therefore, we 
will support 144 people through all three levels over the course of a year

1305332 Unity Music 
Arts Team 
(UMAT)

'Broadway to 
Bermondsey' 
@ Southwark 
Park Band 
Stand.

'Broadway to Bermondsey ' is the idea of presenting a fringe style live musical theatre production at 
Southwark Park Band Stand .

A compilation of Musical Theatre show tunes and  songs from The Great  American song book light 
performed as light  jazz classics.   

This production (date to be confirmed with Southwark Park Team) , would be a Sunday afternoon summer  
event in presented in  July/August 2020.  

Southwark Park  Band Stand is the ideal location to present Broadway To Bermondsey.   A community 
engagement event promoting aspiring and seasoned creative talent. 

A free public small scale  event that welcomes everyone . Music performed by students and graduates 
invited from London's leading music conservatoires.

£  1,350.00

1303724 Afro-Brazilian 
Arts & Cultural 
Exchange 
Institute

Cultural 
Exchange

Our organisation would like to apply for a grant to run a social inclusion project in Rotherhithe to improve 
the quality of life of young people that come from disadvantaged backgrounds and otherwise would not be 
able to afford the extracurricular activities that we offer. The young people that we want to engage with 
our activities are at risk of social exclusion and a risk of offending. Some young people participating from 
the activities will be ex-offenders and want to start over by learning new skills. Our organisation is arts 
based and our project will offer the participants the chance to learn multi-cultural rhythms and dances, as 
well as performing arts. In this particular project for young people, we will run 100 project hours over a 
period of 35 weeks.  Upon completion of the project, the young people will receive certificates of 
achievement.

We have done extensive research to check that our project addresses the needs of Southwark residents. 
Recent studies showed us that Southwark ranked as 41st most deprived borough out of the 326 local 
authorities in England. The proportion of Southwark's children living in deprivation is around 37%, and the 
proportion of children (under 16) living in poverty is 33.9%. Our project addresses equality and gives the 
children opportunity of a better future by having access to free of charge sessions.

https://www.southwarkstats.com/public.php?d=D0002&p=P0002&s=S0018.

£3,500.00

33



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref & Ward: 
South 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1316536 S.E.T.R.A  
(Setchelll 
TRA)

Improving mobility 
& Lower Back pain 
through Yoga

2 Different classes: 

1) “Young at Heart” yoga has been running on Mondays/Wednesday’s providing affordable yoga classes 
to the local community for the past 3 years.

70% of the group have taken up yoga - at the recommendation of their Doctor’s – to resolve/alleviate 
chronic health problems.

2) Yoga for Healthy Lower Backs. 

About 2.6 million people seeking advice from their GP about back pain each year.

Public Heath England, ARMA, Arthritis Research UK support  this 12 week training. YHLB’s approach. 
PHE MSK ROI tool/report lists this specific programme as offering a good return on investment £10:1.  
The course runs for 12 weeks, 1 hour a week with additional half hour daily exercises at home.

£5,310.00

1316500 Construction 
Youth Trust

Construction into 
Schools

We want to facilitate positive interaction between young people in local schools and employers involved 
in local regeneration projects, to raise awareness of local career pathways and create a pipeline of 
young people entering employment. Employer engagement was found to reduce the likelihood of young 
people becoming NEET and improve future earning potentials of young people. We will focus on 
supporting young people least likely to receive careers education support. 

Southwark has the 2nd highest rate of youth unemployment in London. Young Londoners are in danger 
of long term unemployment as they lack the technical skills employers seek. With labour markets shifting 
from high to low skilled jobs, Southwark youths are at risk of not achieving their career potentials. 
Southwark is currently undergoing massive regeneration which will create a pipeline of 
education/training/employment opportunities for thousands of young people over the next 10-15 years. 

Our aim is to use the construction industry as a powerful tool of social mobility. Construction is one of 
UK’s largest sectors with a plethora of career pathways and progression routes. Yet, there is a lack of 
understanding of these careers. Research found that 50% of young people were given career advice on 
construction opportunities. Past funding from Southwark Neighbourhood Funds has enabled us to 
engage over 5,000 young people since 2017. 88% of participants have increased their knowledge of the 
built environment sector.

£7,500.00

34



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref & Ward: 
South 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1316135 Nigeria 
National 
Community 
Fund

Youth engagement, 
care of elderly, 
cultural shows 
summer bond

As a community group, our activities for the youth are important in teaching them about culture and how 
to be a good citizen in society. This is also linked to knife crime and awareness where we invited 
stakeholders in the community to speak on the causes and remedies to prevention of knife crime in the 
community. We held summit on knife crime on the 5th may 2018, where councillors from South 
Bermondsey neighbourhood police and service providers were in attendance. Care of our elderly in the 
community where they are able to interact whilst teaching them their local and healthy living. Organise 
cultural day where community showcase their rich cultural display and summer bonding at the sadisde. 
Above are intended to build community cohesion within the minority group in the community.

£5,050.00

1316034 City Hope 
Wonderful 
Wednesdays

City Hope 
Wonderful 
Wednesdays

“Wonderful Wednesdays” is an umbrella term for the community events that are held at the church on a 
weekly basis. We have been running a Southwark Foodbank session and free community cafe for 6 
years and Life Skills courses for 3 years on Wednesdays. We have seen a big increase in attendance 
over the last 2 years, with a rise in people coming who are living in long term poverty, often due to 
chronic long term health needs. Many need help in managing the stress of living on a low income. We 
also have seen an increase in people struggling with controlling habits and addictions such as smoking 
and drinking. To help this, this year we trained and started to run the CAP Fresh Start Course, which is a 
course designed to help people find release from life controlling habits.  So we are currently alternating 
running the Life Skills and Fresh Start courses to empower people with the necessary skills to help 
themselves and each other.  Most importantly, we have seen first-hand how Wonderful Wednesdays are 
helping to alleviate social isolation by becoming a friendly and inclusive community, where everyone is 
welcome and real friendships are built. We are seeing an increase in interest in our courses as 
evidenced by having 25 people attend the first session of our new Life Skills course last week.  We are 
also feeding around 60 people a hot meal on a Wednesday and have recently started a monthly hot meal 
on a Sunday to further build community and family.

£3,200.00

1315902 Bermondsey 
Spa 
Residents 
Association

Funding for 
Bermondsey Spa 
Residents 
Association

Bermondsey Spa Residents Association ( BSRA ) is a community project that has been going on for 10 
years since the Bermondsey Spa development has been built. It takes active approach in dealing with 
multitude of issues that residents of the 17 buildings have, ranging from building and grounds 
maintenance, issues related to service charges and mismanagement by the freeholder. BSRA holds 
monthly meetings with the freeholder, organises up to 4 residents meetings a year, including AGM and 
maintains a resident’s website, all without any outside funding. Grant that would cover running costs for a 
year would help us continue doing the good work and overcome lack of available funds for all the 
activities we are committed to do.

£1,000.00

35



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref & Ward: 
South 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1315531 Open Arms 
Community 
Foundation

Fit With Chronic 
Fibromyalgia

71% of identified 49 BAME men & women in our community with Chronic Fibromyalgia Syndrome who 
are physical inactive over the years would like to be given opportunity to exercise regularly with a group 
of active people who had experienced the same physical limitations. Its a bi-lingual physical activities for 
local persons to be delivered a weekly 2 hour-long 12-week (twice/week) fitness class on Saturday & 
Sunday(1-3PM) in Links Community Hall and surrounding areas .The sessions will focus on gentle 
exercise and progress to floor-based activities where appropriate including Tai Chi ,Pilates and Yoga. All 
classes will be tailored to participants’ levels of comfort and ability and will be provided in a supportive 
environment while bringing group of people never ever mingle together before. With encouraging 
vouchers& supports will lead to participants continuing physical activity at home/group, gaining 
confidence to participate/subscribe to mainstream activities and generally feeling healthier and more in 
control of their symptoms. 

Sport united people; this group of people has been left out of community without proper guidance. 
Through organized a week physical activities in SUMMER 2018@ Southwark Park located in 
Rotherhithe joined by local people with health issues to explore what sports activities works well for 
them.109 Feedbacks received from the participants quoted that Tai Chi, Pilates & Yoga was the most 
overwhelmed by participants; recognized exercises wanted to relax pains.

£2,346.00

1315158 Longfield 
Tenants and 
Residents 
Association

Longfield Tea 
Dance's for 
Pensioners

It brings pensioners together on a Sunday afternoon and lets them make friends, it will let them have a 
dance (for exercising) and a sing song. We will provide a DJ, Tea, Coffee, Cakes and Sandwiches. It is 
needed to get pensioners out and to stop them being lonely, especially when a couple and one of them 
has dementia, they can bring them to the hall. We fill Sunday is a lonely time for pensioners.

£3,000.00 36



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref & Ward: 
South 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1311271 Bede Youth 
Adventure 
Project

Funday@Bede2020  
- a Funday to 
celebrate 
community

The BRCC and the Neighbourhoods Funds have helped establish our highly successful community 
Funday on the Abbeyfield Estate. Incredibly despite Bede being in the middle of a building site it 
continues to be the only event on this estate that brings everyone out of their flats.. It brings people of all 
faiths and ages and abilities together.

Participating in this inclusive event will continue increase community bonds and resilience whilst waiting 
for the building works to be finally over!

The very successful summer Funday@Bede2019 was our 12th annual event and despite being held 
amidst building works was attended by over 150 local residents, young people, people with disabilities, 
local businesses and people from neighbouring estates. They were entertained by a hula hoop 
performance artist, circus skills, graffiti artist, t-shirt printing, face painting, music by local young people, 
firefighters, police officers, BBQ food, and everyone danced the afternoon away.

The estate's development is due to be completed in ...is anyone's guess at the moment. So this event is 
the only event that draws the community together.

We look to a celebration on the estate with the contractors and the council representatives, councillors 
and our neighbours.

£1,971.00

37



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref & Ward: 
South 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1311249 Southwark 
Playhouse

Community 
Production at 
Southwark 
Playhouse

In 2020, Southwark Playhouse is opening a brand new venue in Elephant and Castle.

To inaugurate this as a space for the community, we are planning a community production - local 
residents will perform in their own special production, supported by professional theatre artists and 
onstage at Southwark Playhouse.
The arts, when delivered effectively, have the power to facilitate social interaction and contribute to 
community cohesion, reducing social exclusion and isolation, and making communities feel safer and 
stronger.

Participants taking part in this project will gain a number of benefits:
- An increase in confidence and communication skills
- An opportunity to express themselves creatively.
- Opportunities to explore and develop new skills
- Engagement with arts professionals
- Increased agency and status in relation to the running of a major arts venue in London.

Southwark Playhouse hopes to use this to begin the process of making its focus more representatives of 
the local area, and increase involvement and attendance by underrepresented groups. The new 
Southwark Playhouse can also play a small part in counteracting the negative effect of the upcoming 
development of the area by creating somewhere where local residents can take part in enriching 
activities.

£3,600.00

38



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref & Ward: 
South 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1310881 Golden 
Oldies

Golden Thursdays We are a volunteer-run organisation supporting 200 Caribbean, African, and BME older people.  

PROJECT
60 volunteers deliver services at our weekly centre: Coffee social and games; Caribbean lunch; Arts 
(storytelling, writing, performance); Chair exercises and massage; Digital skills sessions provided by 
students of schools. 

1 Volunteer Coordinator will build relationships and liaise with corporate organisations, community 
organisations and universities to engage more volunteers so that we can deliver our services and extend 
our reach to more older people. 

NEED
We are the only service providing a culturally appropriate service for BME elders in Southwark. 
Our consultations with users found:
• 95% are lonely with no local family or friendship networks and access no other group because they 
want a service that meets their cultural need.  
• 60% suffer from depression and lack confidence to engage in community activities.   
• 58% of frail older people in advanced age want weekly support to feel part of the community. 

BENEFITS
1. Improve mental and physical wellbeing of older people by providing activities for healthy, happy, 
independent lives.
2. Reduce isolation by bringing older people and volunteers together at our centre, building strong 
relationships across diverse cultures, ages and communities. 
3. Increase the skills and confidence of older people so they are visible and empowered to engage in the 
community, enhancing inclusion. 

£4,935.00

39



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref & Ward: 
South 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1306311 Big Local 
Works

Big Local Works Big Local Works is a local charity providing essential services to the local community including preparing 
residents for employment, supporting enterprise and social entrepreneurs and benefit and welfare 
support. 
Previously BLW has worked with several other training providers but are now in a position to produce our 
own five-week Employability Training programme, running three days a week, with 10-12 participants per 
cohort. This training program will be repeated six times throughout the year with a two week recruitment 
and review period. Our immediate area is in the top 10% of the most deprived neighbourhoods in the 
country, outlining the need for a course like ours that will produce sustainable change in people’s lives, 
offering support around lifestyle, self-awareness, wellbeing and/or personal finance/benefits advice, in 
order to sustain a job or apprenticeship. The course will focus on employability skills, work experience, 
CV’s, money management, customer service, interview skills and the next steps to employment. There 
will also be follow up opportunities for participants to gain advice benefits and welfare support. We 
believe this training will result in genuine life changing skills and support for local residents to get back in 
to positive and productive work. Not just any work but well paid and secure jobs that deliver positive 
economic opportunities for local people. 

£4,800.00

1305985 Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen

Bermondsey 
Community Kitchen

Bermondsey Community Kitchen is a non for profit community café and training facility. Our project has 
successfully run long term catering training for several years however we have identified a need in our 
local community through liaising with other community groups approaching us for support and also 
individuals requesting a varied range of courses for short term training from 1 to 5 days. 
Our project will be delivering courses from the Charted Institute of Environmental Health including the 
Level 1 Introduction to Food Safety certificate aimed at those new to food safety and will train 
participants in food preparation and contamination health risks and controls. 

The Level 2 Foundation to Food Safety certificate will be aimed at those looking to develop their skills or 
small enterprises starting their own businesses. The Level 3 Intermediate to Food Safety certificate is 
aimed at those who will be supervising and managing others in a food environment. These courses will 
benefit residents through improving their employability and employment opportunities. The project will 
work with numerous other local community groups to recruit participants for the courses.

The courses will work with 12 people every month for a year, supporting them through Level 1, 2 and 3 in 
Food Safety. This will take approximately 7 days each month spread across four weeks. Therefore, we 
will support 144 people through all three levels over the course of a year.

£3,942.20

40



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref & Ward: 
South 
Bermondsey

Name of 
your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea 

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1304977 Unity Music 
Arts Team 
(UMAT)

Live Music @ The 
Blue Market

It is my aim to present quality  Live Music @ The Blue Market on the 1st Saturday of each month 
between 1pm and 4pm between April and September 2020 .    We have learned from this years 
spring/summer events (2019) that The Blue Market suits a more stripped back amplified acoustic sound.    
A diverse mix of music from light jazz, folk, reggae and pop covers.
The live amplified acoustic music played at Deptford Yard Market  has helped attract and retain footfall 
over the past few years .  The Blue Market Bermondsey has the same potential to attract a wider range 
of food stalls, traders and shoppers. 
Local residents are keen to see more cultural events staged at The Blue Market.

£2,725.00

1306335 Big Local 
Works

Big Local Works Big Local Works is a local charity providing essential services to the local community including preparing 
residents for employment, supporting enterprise and social entrepreneurs and benefit and welfare 
support. 
Previously BLW has worked with several other training providers but are now in a position to produce our 
own five-week Employability Training programme, running three days a week, with 10-12 participants per 
cohort. This training program will be repeated six times throughout the year with a two week recruitment 
and review period. Our immediate area is in the top 10% of the most deprived neighbourhoods in the 
country, outlining the need for a course like ours that will produce sustainable change in people’s lives, 
offering support around lifestyle, self-awareness, wellbeing and/or personal finance/benefits advice, in 
order to sustain a job or apprenticeship. 

The course will focus on employability skills, work experience, CV’s, money management, customer 
service, interview skills and the next steps to employment. There will also be follow up opportunities for 
participants to gain advice benefits and welfare support. We believe this training will result in genuine life 
changing skills and support for local residents to get back in to positive and productive work. Not just any 
work but well paid and secure jobs that deliver positive economic opportunities for local people. 

£4,800.00

0000001 Make-it-to-
the-mat

Yoga for Flexibility, 
Wellbeing and a 
Healthy Lower Back

Young At Heart community Yoga has been running in the hall for 3 years now at cost of £1 to 
participants. All participants have reported increased mobility and pain relief.

YHLB (Yoga for Healthy Lower Backs) is a  new 12 week course. Participants will attend 1 class a week. 
It is  safe, effective, simple to understand, easy to practise at home with everyday props, gradually-
progressing (Pain Relief, postural awareness to begin with and more challenging poses that help with 
mobility and strength of whole body for returning to hobbies, e.g. sport, gardening etc.) 

As many of the students on classes come from  South, North and West Bermondsey, Rotherhithe, 
Walworth and London Bridge area it makes sense to apply to all these wards.

£5,310.00

41



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward 
Surrey Docks

Name of your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1318564 Bizzie Bodies CIC My Art Beats in 
London

A festival representing local cultures through visual and performing arts. Welcoming families, 
activities will happen over a week allowing participants of different age ranges o bring local residents 
together through art, music, food, cultures and other talents to celebrate together.

 £    4,600.00 

1318557 Bizzie Bodies CIC THE LibLab Show The LIBLAB is a digital makerspace for people to meet, learn, create and innovate at Canada Water 
Library. It is the place for makers, tinkerers and inventors to work together, imagine, try new things, 
learn and have fun! Once a month over a day' families and friends will access unique activities 
together to develop lifelong skills. The participants will be split per age range within the library and 
the Fab Bus, a double Decker bus design to host creative activities and that will be parked outside 
the library, as previous collaboration.

 £    6,950.00 

1317511 Bizzie Bodies CIC Tech Hub The Project will have the following Outcomes as part of its Deliverables:

Creation & Running Of Unique Digital Design / Makercraft Skills Youth Clubs
3 Days Per Week Including Wednesdays, Fridays, Saturdays And Holidays.
The Development And Technical Support Of Locally Accessible Popup And Dedicated
Digital Design Makerspace In A Local Venue For Young People.
This will be achieved by incorporating and coordinating all the resources we have covering:3D Digital 
Design - 2D Digital Design - Coding - Electronics
Robotics - Wearable Tech - Makercraft.
All the Activities, Workshops and Events will be delivered as part of the overarching
project with emphasis on exploring:
New opportunities to learn and collaborate,
Innovative Ideas While Expressing Creativity.

Participants will be set on the path to learning important Technical Skills using technologies such as 
3D Digital Design. They will have continued access to equipment, technical resources, new 
opportunities for learning, ways to collaborate and create. To facilitate this Digital Design /Makercraft, 
the space will be open 3 days per week minimum. With the support of Industry Experts they lead, 
develop and promote projects that will allow them to experiment technology, whether Future, Current 
or Traditional, will continue to affect and impact the way things are taught and presented to young 
people.

 £    8,600.00 

42



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward 
Surrey Docks

Name of your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1317498 Herbs and Spaces The Big Half 
marathon for Herbs 
and Spaces

In 2019 Herbs and Spaces had 21runners for the Big Half. In preparation to the marathon we had 
daily workshops for preparing t-shirts for all runners. For the Big Half 2020 we have been given 33 
places and following on the previous experience we can build a good local running team, raise 
awareness for the scheme and get even more people involved.

 £    4,900.00 

1316537 The Fabric Swatch Sewing Circle I started the sewing circle in 2013, a group of people with a common interest in sewing meet up and 
socialise while sewing. Open for beginners and experts alike. The Sewing Circle aims to encourage 
sewing and handmade items and eliminate loneliness and isolation by encouraging interaction with 
new people. We have relaunched our workshops with The Fabric Swatch, and have a new aim, to 
encourage people to be aware of how clothes and household items are made by teaching simple 
sewing machine skills and leaving the session with a complete product.

 £    4,880.00 

1316490 Surrey Docks 
Provident Society

A Horticulture 
Apprentice for 
Rotherhithe

The Farm wants to:
- Establish an apprenticeship for local young people aged 18 – 25 to train & acquire horticultural & 
employment skills.
- Provide a resource for students, volunteers & visitors – the apprentice will co-ordinate volunteer 
activities, lead weekly drop-in community food growing sessions, maintain the Farm’s greenery & 
help showcase sustainable practices.
- Help local ward projects – the apprentice will provide back-up for our Green Mentor’s outreach work 
with residents & TRAs promoting growing and greening initiatives in underused spaces.

For the next 5 years we have a £10K-5K/year contribution towards the apprenticeship through our 
‘Putting Down Roots in Rotherhithe’ project funded by City Bridge Trust. A Neighbourhood Fund 
contribution will help kickstart the first apprenticeship to run for its first year from 1/4/20 and 
showcase its benefits to other funders - developers, social landlords, corporates & trusts - for 
subsequent apprenticeships.

Working with neighbouring environmental groups Friends of Russia Docks Woods & Stave Hill 
Ecological Park & through activities & workshops we’ve run in previous years we know there’s 
considerable local interest in ‘growing and greening’ initiatives to ensure a quality environment is 
maintained among all the new build & the growing population  – but there’s also a lack of know-how. 
To help encourage all ages to get involved & skilled up the Farm needs that extra staffing resource 
which an apprentice can provide.

 £  10,000.00 

43



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward 
Surrey Docks

Name of your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1316149 Central Southwark 
Community Hub

Holiday Club The aim of the project is to provide a range of social and fun activities that will promote the physical, 
emotional and economic well being of those families with young children in the local area.

Also, enhance healthy eating, create social inclusion and address the challenges of food insecurity, 
and Holiday Hunger for families. The project will provide volunteering opportunities and support for 
those looking to find further development, employment, training and education opportunities. The 
Activities will include Arts and Crafts, Music Workshops, Games, Sports, Trips, Farm activities etc.

There is more demand for the service as families are more socially isolated and CSCHub in 
partnership with other agencies and organisations is communicating to helping address the need of 
those families.

We will be working in partnership with Surrey Docks Farm to run the project to widen and encourage 
a more diverse range of visitors to the farm and to allow our families to have the opportunity to utilise 
the farm where they may not typically have previously.

 £    5,650.00 

1316114 Soundcamp Workshops for 
Soundcamp 2020

Soundcamp (2014-19) is a microfestival at Stave Hill Ecological Park on International Dawn Chorus 
Day. It aims to give a wide and varied local audience a way to experience the dawn chorus in their 
own neighbourhood. 
In 2020 we would like to run a series of workshops with local groups before, during and after the 
Soundcamp event. These will introduce participants to the Park through the seasons by paying 
attention to its sounds, including those of birds, insects and amphibians. 
We will work with young people to build DIY audio equipment and involve them in the Reveil 24 hour 
radio broadcast of the Dawn Chorus. We will combine these with birdsong ID, soundwalks, a bat 
walk, and other activities, some led by local experts.
We will showcase this work in a new colourful lightweight structure commissioned as part of a 3 year 
project co-funded by Creative Europe and Arts Council England, which will be set up at Stave Hill for 
the soundcamp this year and in future editions.
Soundcamp is an annual free event with strong local support, now in its 7th year. It creates unusual, 
memorable ways for audiences to encounter urban nature at Stave Hill Ecological Park through an 
inclusive and varied program of workshops, walks, performances and art works.
Support from Southwark through the Neighbourhoods Fund helps us build contacts with local 
organisations to maintain and develop the local participation that is key to the project. 

 £    2,400.00 

44



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward 
Surrey Docks

Name of your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

1315843 Millwall Community 
Trust

Millwall Walking 
Sports Club

Millwall Community Trust will provide free open access weekly sports activities for 48 weeks and 2-
day trips for a full year funded programme. The Millwall Walking Sports Club has run for over three 
years in Southwark and has been successfully delivered in many different settings and locations 
such as TRA halls, community and leisure centres, estate ball courts, parks and Guys Hospital. The 
programme helps bring older people from different backgrounds together through taking part in fun 
walking sports activities which also helps reduce stress, isolation and loneliness. 

The activities help support older people who are currently inactive and support those with two or 
three limiting long-term health conditions, including dementia, mental health, limited mobility to stay 
fit and healthy. 30 minutes before each activity, refreshments are provided along with local 
newspapers to encourage individual and open table conversations.

The structured sports activities include the use of throwing, catching, rolling and striking the ball 
techniques which provide participants to have fun, stimulate the mind, develop balance and hand-
eye coordination. The weekly sessions help take away the stress for those living with someone who 
has dementia for the time they are at the programme which is often all they might normally get. 
Weekly telephone conversations also help regular communication going which reduces people 
feeling lonely away from the sessions.

 £    5,010.00 

1315023 The Bermondsey 
Artists' Group 
managing 
Southwark Park 
Gallery

Drop-in Gardening 
Sessions for 
Disadvantaged 
Families

Our project is a programme of free weekly drop-in gardening sessions for local disadvantaged 
families with pre-schoolers from the local estates surrounding Southwark Park within the North East 
Area (North Bermondsey, Surrey Docks and Rotherhithe), in our beautiful Community Allotment in 
the gallery courtyard, situated in Southwark Park. Pre-schoolers learn the benefits of healthy eating 
for life, giving them the best possible start to their food journey.

Parents, grandparents and carers work with their children to grow, harvest and eat fresh fruit and 
vegetables in this idyllic allotment.

The families we work with live on the nearby densely populated social housing estates where the 
proportion of residents living in flats in the nearby social housing estates is 61% higher than the 
national average and the present focus on new high-density housing in the area is only expected to 
cause a further shortage of garden spaces.

The area suffers from one of the highest rates of child obesity in England, with 30% of 10-11 year 

 £    6,072.00 

45



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward 
Surrey Docks

Name of your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

olds in Bermondsey and Rotherhithe diagnosed as obese. This is significantly higher than the 
national average of 19%.

We have an upgraded Community Allotment with better access to young gardeners, prams, buggies 
and wheelchairs thanks to winning the local popular vote and receiving funding from Tesco Bags of 
Help in 2017 and securing additional capital Cleaner Greener Safer.

1314936 Dannica 
Bezuidenhout

Zumba for over 
50's

The Zumba sessions aim to be at a pace where everyone can keep up and improve fitness while 
enjoying a fun activity. Studies have shown that maintaining regular physical activity can help prevent 
many common diseases, such as heart disease and diabetes. Exercise improves overall immune 
function, which is important for seniors. It can also Improve mental health, strength and flexibility, 
balance and coordination - reducing the risk of falls. Countless studies suggest a lower risk of 
dementia for physically active individuals, regardless of when you begin a routine.
(https://thegreenfields.org/5-benefits-exercise-seniors-aging-adults/)

Not only do the participants benefit from the weekly exercise, but it also gives them a chance to get 
out of the house, meet new people and make friends. We will provide some free tea and coffee for 
after the sessions so they have an opportunity to socialise. We also hope and expect many of the 
participants to get involved in the other activities we offer at the centre for elderly - floristry, walking 
sports as well as Silver Cheerleading/hiking which are in partnership with "Silver Fit."

 £    2,500.00 

1311766 Friends of Lavender 
Pond

Holiday activities at 
Lavender Pond

To run a series of free events for children and families at Lavender Pond Nature Reserve, enabling 
people to engage with nature, educate children and give families (particularly those on lower income) 
the chance to get out and about during school holidays. We would also run some weekend events as 
part of this scheme further enabling people to engage with the site and wildlife.

 £    1,500.00 

1306337 Big Local Works Big Local Works Big Local Works is a local charity providing essential services to the local community including 
preparing residents for employment, supporting enterprise and social entrepreneurs and benefit and 
welfare support. 
Previously BLW has worked with several other training providers but are now in a position to produce 
our own five-week Employability Training programme, running three days a week, with 10-12 
participants per cohort. This training program will be repeated six times throughout the year with a 
two week recruitment and review period. Our immediate area is in the top 10% of the most deprived 
neighbourhoods in the country, outlining the need for a course like ours that will produce sustainable 

 £    4,800.00 

46



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward 
Surrey Docks

Name of your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

change in people’s lives, offering support around lifestyle, self-awareness, wellbeing and/or personal 
finance/benefits advice, in order to sustain a job or apprenticeship. The course will focus on 
employability skills, work experience, CV’s, money management, customer service, interview skills 
and the next steps to employment. There will also be follow up opportunities for participants to gain 
advice benefits and welfare support. We believe this training will result in genuine life changing skills 
and support for local residents to get back in to positive and productive work. Not just any work but 
well paid and secure jobs that deliver positive economic opportunities for local people. 

1306022 Bermondsey 
Community Kitchen

Bermondsey 
Community Kitchen

Bermondsey Community Kitchen is a non for profit community café and training facility. Our project 
has successfully run long term catering training for several years however we have identified a need 
in our local community through liaising with other community groups approaching us for support and 
also individuals requesting a varied range of courses for short term training from 1 to 5 days. Our 
project will be delivering courses from the Charted Institute of Environmental Health including the 
Level 1 Introduction to Food Safety certificate aimed at those new to food safety and will train 
participants in food preparation and contamination health risks and controls. The Level 2 Foundation 
to Food Safety certificate will be aimed at those looking to develop their skills or small enterprises 
starting their own businesses. The Level 3 Intermediate to Food Safety certificate is aimed at those 
who will be supervising and managing others in a food environment. These courses will benefit 
residents through improving their employability and employment opportunities. The project will work 
with numerous other local community groups to recruit participants for the courses. 

The courses will work with 12 people every month for a year, supporting them through Level 1, 2 and 
3 in Food Safety. This will take approximately 7 days each month spread across four weeks. 
Therefore, we will support 144 people through all three levels over the course of a year.

 £    3,942.20 

1305573 Restorative Justice 
for All International 
Institute

Restorative Justice 
& Culture (RJC)

Our Ward is rapidly developing from being a dock-focused community of working families to one of 
London’s most wanted property areas, attracting young professionals and investors. These changes 
are slowly creating divisions between the area’s established and new residents. Recent EHRC 
statistics show that hate incidents are increasing (e.g. MPS recorded an increase of 44% of hate 
incidents). Cultural awareness is low, while tensions and frustration are increasing.
As we believe that long term change can happen by starting with young people, we want to carry out 
a local restorative justice project working directly with disadvantaged children and their families to 
prevent the reasons that lead to community divisions. RJC is built within the Good Lives Model 
believing that everyone has talents, and that integration can be achieved by nurturing these 

 £    5,000.00 

47



North East Multi Ward NsF Applications 2020-21                                                           APPENDIX 1

Ref &Ward 
Surrey Docks

Name of your 
group 

Name of your 
project or idea

What project is trying to achieve: Total:

strengths rather than taking corrective actions. By being proactive and by starting with the area’s 
youngest population, we want to use restorative justice through sports and art to empower some of 
our youth’s most marginalized groups, while bringing them closer to the community.
Our project is needed for our target group to also get fairer chances in turning their disadvantage and 
lives around. We know that out-of-school activities are becoming too expensive for children from 
poorer families, leaving them isolated. RJC will create free activities, allowing them to take advantage 
of the opportunities that the area offers.

0000004 Docklands Junior 
Football Club

Running costs and 
training facilities 

The team is in urgent need of funds to secure its survival. £3,000

48



Item No. 
9.

Classification:
Open

Date:
11 March 2020

Meeting Name:
North East Multi-Ward Forum

Report title: Devolved Highway 2020-21: Capital Funding 
Allocation

Ward(s) or groups affected: North Bermondsey, Rotherhithe, South Bermondsey, 
Surrey Docks

From: Head of Highways 

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To approve the reallocation of underspent funds carried forward from previous 
years underspend, current programme underspend and current programme 
project cancellations.

2. To approve the allocation of funds for the 2020-2021 Devolved Highways capital 
programme in the North East multi-ward area from the list of applications set out 
in Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3. The council’s non-principal road investment programme prioritises works on non-
principal roads on a borough-wide basis and this investment forms the largest 
part of the annual investment programme.

4. Multi-ward forums are allocated a devolved fund of £800,000 each year from the 
total annual programme to spend on their priorities for highway renewal and 
maintenance that may not be prioritised as part of the borough-wide programme.

5. The financial provision for each multi ward forum is pro-rata by ward, as 
published in the Highways Capital Investment Programme 2014-15 report. 

  
6. Commencing in 2017-18, the scope of the fund has been widened to permit the 

full range of minor traffic and highway capital schemes rather than solely like-for-
like repair and replacement. Examples of the types of works which can now be 
funded include:

 Footway and carriageway resurfacing;
 Traffic calming;
 Localised repairs;
 Accessibility improvements;
 Footway buildouts;
 Cycle hangars.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

7. There is £152,380 available for the 2020-2021 Devolved Highways programme 
for new projects in the North East multi-ward area.

49
Agenda Item 9



8. There is £57,600 in additional funding from previous years underspend, current 
programme underspend and current programme project cancellations. 

Policy implications

9. N/A

Community impact statement

10. The roles and functions of multi-ward areas include the promotion of involvement 
of local people in the democratic process. 

11. An explicit objective within multi-ward areas is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The devolved highways 
programme is an important tool in achieving community participation.

12. In fulfilling the above objectives of multi-ward areas to bring together and involve 
Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been given to the 
council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the council to have 
due regard when taking decision to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited   
conduct;

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristics and those who do not share it;

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 
and those that do not share it.

13. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

14. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of:

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic;

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic;

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic participate 
in public life or any other activity in which they are under- represented.

15. Ideas for devolved highway projects come from the local community, the majority 
via a simple project nomination form available in electronic and paper format.

Resource implications

16. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored 
and reported on as part of the overall capital programme.

50



Consultation 

17. All devolved highway projects require consultation with stakeholders, including 
the project applicant, local residents, tenants and residents associations and local 
community groups where appropriate.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

18. The Local Government Act 2000 (‘the 2000 Act’) gives the Leader the power to 
delegate any executive function to whoever lawfully can undertake the function. 
The allocation of the devolved highways programme capital fund is an executive 
function.

19. Multi-ward areas are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act and 
executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader. The terms of the 
delegation are set out in part 3H of the council’s constitution.

20. This report recommends that the North East multi-ward area approves the 
allocation of funds to the individual projects specified at Appendix 1. Paragraph 
14, Part 3H of the constitution enables multi-ward areas to approve “the 
allocation of funds to devolved highway schemes of a local nature, using the 
resources and criteria identified by the cabinet”.

21. Multi-ward areas have further have powers under paragraph 16, Part 3H of the 
constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the local schemes 

22. In allocating funding under the devolved highways programme, multi-ward areas 
must have regard to the council’s equality duty set out in section 149 of the 
Equality Act 2010. The report author has demonstrated how those duties need to 
be considered in the body of the report at paragraphs 12 to 14 in the community 
impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance 

23. This report seeks the approval of the North East multi-ward area for the allocation of 
funds £209,980 for the 2020-21 devolved highways programme in the North East 
multi-ward area from the list of applications set out in Appendix 1. 

24. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource implications in 
the report that the proposed allocations will be contained within the council’s capital 
programme.

25. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 
recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
None

51



APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 North East Multi Ward Area Devolved Highway Capital 

programme 2020-21: Applications
Appendix 2 North East Multi Ward Area Unallocated Funding
Appendix 3 North East Multi Ward Area Cancelled projects

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Dale Foden, Head of Highways  
Report Author George Mellish,Transport Projects Engineer
Version Final
Dated 3 February 2020
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes

Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 17 February 2020

52



APPENDIX 1
North East Multi Ward Area
Devolved Highways Capital Investment programme 2020/21: Applications
Reference Proposal Name Ward Programme

800002 Public Seating
North
Bermondsey

Highways

1317460 Bermondsey Viaduct Healthy Route
North
Bermondsey

Highways

1300846
Traffic calming measure for Rotherhithe
street

Rotherhithe Highways

1316676 Rotherhithe St footway resurfacing Rotherhithe Highways

1316378 Blue Anchor Lane Road Closure
South
Bermondsey

Highways

800006 Bermondsey Viaduct Healthy Route
South
Bermondsey

Highways

1316404
Safe Accessible Pavements on Blue Anchor
Lane

South
Bermondsey

Highways

1308124 cycle-friendly throughway by Mayflower pub
Surrey Docks Highways

1317186
Protecting roadside verge opposite Hemlock
House and Nisa (Quebec Quarter)

Surrey Docks
Highways

1317452 Surrey Docks Cycle parking Surrey Docks Highways

53



APPENDIX 2

Unalloacted 2019/20 Devolved Highway Funding
North East Multi Ward Area

Ward Unallocated Funding

South Bermondsey £21,845.00

Surrey Docks £12,255.00
Total £34,100.00

54



APPENDIX 3

Project RefProject Name Multi Ward Cluster Ward Costcode Total Budget Total Expenditure Under Over

107591
Albion Street Damaged
Kerb/pavement North East Rotherhithe L-5110-0040.21.1.17 £20,000.00 £0.00 £20,000.00

107775
St James Road footway
improvements North East South Bermondsey L-5110-0040.21.1.7 £3,500.00 £0.00 £3,500.00

55



NORTH-EAST AREA MULTI-WARD FORUM MEETING

EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES PROGRAMME

WARD BREAKOUT – Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Themes 7:40pm
North Bermondsey
Rotherhithe
South Bermondsey
Surrey Docks

CLOSE 8:30pm  

56



 
NORTH EAST MULTI-WARD AREA AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019 – 20
NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team all amendments/queries to 

Tim Murtagh Tel: 020 7525 7187

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

To all Members of the Multi-ward area

Councillor Kath Whittam

(Members of the Community Council 
receiving electronic copies only)
Councillor  Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Stephanie Cryan
Councillor Nick Johnson
Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Eliza Mann
Councillor Leo Pollak
Councillor Jane Salmon
Councillor Leanne Werner
Councillor Dan Whitehead
Councillor Bill Williams

Officers

Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer - Hub 
2, Floor 2, 160 Tooley Street

Forid Ahmed, Empowering Communities 
Programme Manager - Hub 3, Floor 5, 
160 Tooley Street  

1

 

10

1

Others
Audit Commission
160 Tooley St.

Total:                                                 

Dated: 2 March 2020

1

13

57


	Agenda
	7 CLEANER GREENER SAFER CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020-21
	Appendix 1

	8 NEIGHBOURHOODS FUND 2020-21
	Appendix 1

	9 DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS PROGRAMME 2020-21
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	 [Comment...]
	Distribution list NEMWF 11 Mar 2020


